Thirteenth Parliament (No. 016)



REPUBLIC OF KENYA

THIRTEENTH PARLIAMENT – (FOURTH SESSION)

THE SENATE

VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, MARCH 06, 2025 AT 2.30 PM

- 1. The Senate assembled at thirty Minutes past Two O'clock.
- 2. The proceedings were opened with Prayer said by the Speaker.

3. QUORUM OF THE SENATE

The Speaker, having counted the Honourable Senators present at the commencement of the Sitting and confirming that there was no Quorum, directed that the Bell be rung for ten minutes, pursuant to Standing Order 40;

And there being a Quorum before the expiry of the ten minutes;

The Speaker invited the Clerk to call the Orders of the day.

4. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIR

The Speaker conveyed the following Communications from the Chair –

a) On visiting delegation from Ihwagi Comprehensive School and Karaguririo Comprehensive School – Nyeri County

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Public Gallery this afternoon, visiting students and teachers from Ihwagi Comprehensive School and Karaguririo Comprehensive School, Nyeri County. The delegation comprises of eighty-nine (89) students and twelve (12) teachers who are undertaking a study tour to the Senate at the invitation of Senator for Nyeri County, Sen. Wamatinga Wahome, MP.

Honourable Senators,

On behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, I extend a warm welcome to the delegation and wish them all the best during their visit.

I thank you."

b) On recognition of interns in the Senate Chamber

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Speaker's Gallery this afternoon, seven (7) young men and women who are undertaking an internship programme in the Senate.

Honourable Senators,

The objective of this programme is to provide young people with firsthand experience in the legislative process and to expose them to the intricate world of public policy and public service.

I request each intern to stand when called out so that they may be acknowledged in the usual Senate tradition -

1.Ms. Cynthia Waithera Gichimu - Senate Liaison Office

2.Mr. Hussein Halkano Huka	- Directorate of Finance and
3.Ms. Caroline Nkirote	Accounting - Procurement - Directorate of Finance and
	Accounting – County Liaison
4.Mr. Bryan Kerry Mayodi	- Directorate of Socio – Economic
	Committee Services
5.Mr. Enock Kibet Chelal	- Directorate of Socio – Economic
	Committee Services
6.Ms. Gloria Rose Anyango	- Directorate of Governance and
	Accountability Committee Services
7.Ms. Emily Murabula	- Hansard and Audio Services

On behalf of the Senate, and on my own behalf, I wish them well during the programme, and in their future endeavours.

I thank you."

c) On a visiting delegation of teachers and students from Bukuria School and Junior Academy in Migori County

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Public Gallery this afternoon, visiting students and teachers from Bukuria School and Junior Academy, Migori County. The delegation comprises of fifty (50) students and six (6) teachers who are undertaking a study tour to the Senate.

Honourable Senators,

On behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, I extend a warm welcome to the delegation and wish them all the best during their visit.

I thank you."

(No. 016)

d) On a visiting delegation of teachers and students from Sacho High School in Baringo County

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Public Gallery this afternoon, visiting teachers and students from Sacho High School in Baringo County. The delegation comprises three (3) teachers and eighty-five (85) students, who are in the Senate for a one-day academic exposition.

Honourable Senators,

In our usual tradition of receiving and welcoming visitors to Parliament, I extend a warm welcome to them and, on behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, wish them a fruitful visit.

I thank you."

e) On a visiting delegation of teachers and students from Getarwet Girls' School in Kericho County

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Public Gallery this afternoon, visiting teachers and students from Getarwet Girls' School in Kericho County. The delegation comprises six (6) teachers and seventy (70) students, who are in the Senate for a one-day academic exposition.

Honourable Senators,

In our usual tradition of receiving and welcoming visitors to Parliament, I extend a warm welcome to them and, on behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, wish them a fruitful visit.

I thank you."

f) On a visiting delegation of staff from various County Assemblies and the Kenya School of TVET - Nairobi

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Speaker's Gallery this afternoon, a visiting delegation of Staff from Trans Nzoia County, Garissa County, Nyeri County and the Kenya School of TVET - Nairobi. The staff are attending a training programme on Protocol and Events Management in the Legislature at the Centre for Parliamentary Studies and Training (CPST).

Honourable Senators,

I request each Member of the delegation to stand when called out so that they may be acknowledged in the Senate tradition –

- 1. Ms. Lucy Atieno Trans Nzoia County
- 2. Mr. Oscar Okumu Wanyonyi Trans Nzoia County
- 3. Mr. Fred Neyole Wanyonyi Trans Nzoia County
- 4. Ms. Sahara Hussein Issa Garissa County
- 5. Ms. Margaret Wanjiru Kimotho Kenya School of TVET Nairobi
- 6. Ms. Susan Gathigia Sebastian Nyeri County

On behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, I extend a warm welcome and wish you a fruitful visit.

I thank you."

g) On a visiting delegation of teachers and students from St. Thomas Aquinas Thomeandu Boys' School in Makueni County

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Public Gallery this afternoon, of visiting teachers and students from St. Thomas Aquinas Thomeandu Boys' School in Makueni County. The delegation comprises two (2) teachers and forty-nine (49) students, who are in the Senate for a one-day academic exposition.

Honourable Senators,

In our usual tradition of receiving and welcoming visitors to Parliament, I extend a warm welcome to them and, on behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, wish them a fruitful visit.

I thank you."

h) On a visiting delegation of teachers and students from Yururu Girls' Secondary School in Meru County

"Honourable Senators,

I would like to acknowledge the presence, in the Public Gallery this afternoon, of visiting teachers and students from Yururu Girls' Secondary School in Meru County. The delegation comprises four (4) teachers and one hundred and sixteen (116) students, who are in the Senate for a one-day academic exposition.

Honourable Senators,

In our usual tradition of receiving and welcoming visitors to Parliament, I extend a warm welcome to them and, on behalf of the Senate and on my own behalf, wish them a fruitful visit.

I thank you."

5. **PAPERS LAID**

The following Papers were laid on the Table of the Senate:

- i) The Environmental Management and Co-ordination (Controlled Substances) Regulations, Legal Notice No. 53 of 2025.
- ii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- iii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- v) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- vi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- vii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri County Executive Car Loan and Mortgage (Staff) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- viii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri County Elimu Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri County Enterprise Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- x) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- xi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Dekut Enterprises Company – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri County Health Services for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri County Referral Hospital for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Karatina Sub-County Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Othaya Sub-County Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mt. Kenya Sub-County Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mathira Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyeri Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tetu Aberdare Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Othaya-Mukurweini Water and Sanitation Private Limited Company – County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Naromoru
 Water and Sanitation Company Limited County Government of Nyeri for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

(No. 016)

- xxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue Revenue Statements County Government of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu County Executive Car Loan and Mortgage (Committee Members) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Staff) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu County Education Support Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu County Youth Trust Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu Municipality Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embe Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ngagaka
 Water and Sanitation Company Limited County Government of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ngandori
 Water and Sanitation Company Limited PLC County Government
 of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kyeni Water and Sewerage Company Limited – County Government of Embu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- xxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Tana River for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Tana River for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xl) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Tana River for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xli) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue – Revenue Statements - County Government of Tana River for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xlii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Assembly of Tana River Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xliii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tana River County Staff Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xliv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tana River County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xlv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tana River County Ward Bursary Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xlvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tana River County Inuka Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xlvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Government of Tana River Disaster Risk Management Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xlviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tana River County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - xlix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Municipality of Hola County Government of Tana River for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tana Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - li) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- lii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- liii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- liv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue – Revenue Statements - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Iv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Embu County Executive Car Loan and Mortgage (Committee Members) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Garissa County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Garissa Revolving Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Garissa County Scholarship Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - lix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Garissa County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - lx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Municipality of Dadaab - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - lxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Municipality of Garissa - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Municipality of Masalani - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Garissa County Level 5 Teaching and Referral Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ijara Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- (221)
- lxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Bura Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Balambala Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Dadaab Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Iftin Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Ixix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Modogashe Sub-County Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - lxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Hulugho Sub-County Hospital - County Government of Garissa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Ixxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Baringo County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2023.
- Ixxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Baringo County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Kakamega for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Kakamega for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Kakamega for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue – Revenue Statements- County Government of Kakamega for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

(222)

- Ixxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Assembly Loans and Mortgages Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Education Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Small Scale Trade Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Agricultural Input Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- Ixxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Microfinance Corporation for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Dairy Development Corporation for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Investment and Development Agency for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- lxxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Family Planning Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Ixxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Health Services Fund – for the fourteen (14) months ended 30th June, 2024.
 - Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega Municipality – County Government of Kakamega for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

(No. 016)

- Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mumias Municipality – County Government of Kakamega for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xcii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xciii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakamega County Rural Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xciv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xcv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xcvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xcvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue Revenue Statements- County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xcviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme (Members) Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- xcix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - c) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Assembly Staff Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ci) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Bursary, Educational Development and Infrastructure Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Cooperative Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ciii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2023.

- civ) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of West Pokot County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kapenguria Municipality Board County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Chepareria Municipality – County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kapenguria County Referral Level 4 Hospital County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Chepareria Sub-County Referral Level 4 Hospital – County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Sigor Sub-County Referral Level 4 Hospital – County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kapenguria Water and Sewerage Services Company Limited – County Government of West Pokot for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Trans Nzoia for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Trans Nzoia for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Trans Nzoia for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue Revenue Statements- County Government of Trans Nzoia for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Executive Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Public Service Board for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

(No. 016)

- cxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Elimu Bursary Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Nawiri Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Youth and Women Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Climate Change Fund – for the fourteen (14) months ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Municipality of Kitale County Government of Trans Nzoia for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kitale County Referral Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Trans Nzoia for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Trans Nzoia County Assembly (Members and Staff) Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2023.
- cxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue County Government of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Nyandarua County Executive (State and Public) Officers car loan and mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Nyandarua County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- cxxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Nyandarua County Bursary Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyandarua County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage (Staff) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyandarua County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ol Kalou Municipality - County Government of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Engineer Sub- County Hospital - County Government of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ol Kalou Water and Sanitation Company Limited - County Government of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyandarua Water and Sanitation Company Limited - County Government of Nyandarua for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Uasin Gishu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Uasin Gishu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Uasin Gishu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxl) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue Fund County Government of Uasin Gishu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxli) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Assembly Mortgage and Car Loan Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxlii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Staff Mortgage and Car Loan Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- (227)
- cxliii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Education Revolving Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxliv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Inua Biashara Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxlv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Government Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxlvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxlvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Cooperative Enterprise Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxlviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Bursary and Skills Development Support Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxlix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Uasin Gishu County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cl) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Municipality of Eldoret County Government of Uasin Gishu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cli) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Eldoret Water and Sanitation Company Limited - County Government of Uasin Gishu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - clii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cliii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cliv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - clv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

(No. 016)

- clvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kitui County Assembly Car and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kitui County Assembly Service Board Employees' Car and Mortgage Fund Schemes for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kitui County Empowerment Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - clix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kitui County Textile Centre for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - clx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kitui County Referral Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kyuso Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ikutha Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Katulani Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Migwani Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Tseikuru Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nuu Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mutomo Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kanyangi Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- clxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mwingi Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Zombe Sub-County Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Ikanga Sub-County Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mutitu Sub-County Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kauwi Sub-County Hospital – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements Kitui Water and Sanitation Company – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements Kiambere Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Kitui for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue Revenue Statements County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Executive Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Assembly Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- clxxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Education Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Facilities Improvement Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kapsabet Municipality – County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kapsabet County Referral Hospital – County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- clxxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nandi Hills Sub-County Hospital – County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxc) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meteitei Sub-County Hospital – County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxci) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kapsabet Nandi Water and Sanitation Company Limited– County Government of Nandi for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxcii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Narok for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxciii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Narok for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxciv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Narok for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- cxcv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue - County Government of Narok for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxcvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Narok County Assembly Car Loans, Grants and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxcvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Narok County Bursary Management Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cxcviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Narok County Alcoholic Drinks Regulation and Control Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cxcix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Narok County Referral Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Narok for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cc) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Narok Water and Sewerage Services Company Limited – County Government of Narok for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cci) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cciii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue County Government of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cciv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Loans and Mortgages Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Assembly Member's Loan and Mortgages Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- (232)
- ccviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Veterinary Services Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Bursaries Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County COVID – 19 Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii Demonstration Farm Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Health Facilities Improvement Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii Municipality – County Government of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kisii Teaching and Referral Hospital – County Government of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Gusii Water and Sanitation Company Limited – County Government of Kisii for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- ccxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Receiver of Revenue County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Mandera County Education Bursary Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Mandera County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Mandera Municipality for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Elwak Municipality – County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Mandera County Referral Hospital - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Takaba Sub-County Referral Hospital - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Lafey Sub-County Level 4 Hospital County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Rhamu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Kutulo Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Banisa Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Elwak Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- ccxxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Mandera Water and Sewerage Company Limited– County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the Elwak Water and Sewerage Company Limited – County Government of Mandera for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Revenue Fund County - Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements on Receiver of Revenue - County Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxl) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Executive State and Public Officers Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxli) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund (Staff) for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxlii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Youth Emergency Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxliii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Biashara Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxliv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Co-operative Enterprise Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxlv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Youth and Women Empowerment Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- ccxlvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Education and Skills Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxlvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County COVID-19 Emergency Response Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- ccxlviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxlix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Municipality of Lodwar County Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccl) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Kakuma-Kalobeyei Municipality – County Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccli) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Lodwar County Referral Hospital - County Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Lopiding Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccliii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Lokitaung Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Turkana for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccliv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Lodwar Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Turkana County Water Services Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Meru for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Assembly of Meru for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Revenue Fund - County Government of Meru for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- (236)
- cclix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Receiver of Revenue Revenue Statements County Government of Meru for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Revenue Board for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru Staff Car Loan and Housing Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Executive Staff Housing Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Assembly of Meru Members Car Loan and Housing Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Microfinance Corporation for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Alcoholic Drinks Control Board for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Investment Corporation for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru Youth Service Board for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Climate Change Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru Water and Sewerage Services Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Meru County Rural Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa County Executive for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Assembly of Mombasa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- (237)
- cclxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Revenue Fund - County Government of Mombasa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Receiver of Revenue County Government of Mombasa for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa County Elimu Scheme for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa County Alcoholic Drink Control Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa Investment Corporation for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa County Consolidated Revolving Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclxxx) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Mombasa Water Supply and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - cclxxxi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the County Executive of Samburu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of County Assembly of Samburu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxiii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements on County Revenue Fund - County Government of Samburu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxiv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements on Receiver of Revenue - Revenue Statements - County Government of Samburu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Executive Staff Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

- (238)
- cclxxxvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Community Conservancies Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxviii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Bursary Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
- cclxxxix) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Youth and Women Enterprise Development Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxc) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Persons Living with Disability Fund for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxci) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Financing Locally-Led Climate Action Program for the year ended 30th June, 2023.
 - ccxcii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Financing Locally-Led Climate Action Programme for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxciii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu County Teaching and Referral Hospital - County Government of Samburu for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxciv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Samburu Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxcv) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Nyamira County Referral Hospital – County Government of Nyamira for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxcvi) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Masaba District Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Nyamira for the year ended 30th June, 2024.
 - ccxcvii) Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of Manga Sub-County Level 4 Hospital – County Government of Nyamira for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

(The Deputy Senate Majority Whip)

ccxcviii) Statement on the business of the Senate for the week commencing Tuesday, 11th March, 2025.

(The Senate Majority Leader)

6. **QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS**

a) Statements pursuant to Standing Order 52 (1)

i. Nominated Senator (Sen. Hezena Lemaletian, MP) made a Statement regarding the state of security in Samburu County.

The Senator stated that on Thursday, 27th February 2025, along the Maralal-Baragoi road, armed criminals ambushed a public service vehicle, leading to the tragic loss of two lives and serious injuries to several others. He strongly condemned the attack, extended condolences to the victims' families, and wished the injured a swift recovery.

The Senator emphasized that this attack is yet another reminder of the persistent insecurity affecting Samburu County, particularly in Baragoi and its surrounding areas. He noted that for years, residents have lived in fear due to banditry, highway attacks, and livestock rustling, which continue to threaten their safety and economic well-being.

The Senator expressed concern that the Maralal-Baragoi road remains a dangerous hotspot despite numerous calls for enhanced security in the region. He criticized the failure to address the issue effectively, warning that this inaction has emboldened criminals and left innocent citizens vulnerable.

The Senator stressed that the people of Samburu deserve peace and the right to move freely without the constant fear of ambushes and killings. He urged that such attacks must not be normalized and reaffirmed his commitment to advocating for the security and well-being of his people.

Thereupon, the Senator called on the Ministry for Interior and National Administration, along with all relevant security agencies, to take immediate and decisive action. He urged the government to deploy additional security personnel, strengthen intelligence operations, ensure accountability for perpetrators, and implement long-term measures to eradicate banditry and highway insecurity in Samburu County.

ii. Nominated Senator (Sen. Hamida Kibwana, MP) made a Statement regarding the commemoration of International Women's Day 2025.

The Senator highlighted the significance of International Women's Day (IWD) as a time to celebrate women's achievements and reaffirm the commitment to gender equality. She noted that this year marks 30 years since the Beijing Declaration and comes as Kenya prepares to review its progress at the 69th Session of the Commission on the Status of Women (CSW69). She commended Kenya's progress in advancing women's leadership, citing constitutional provisions, increased representation in governance, and key leadership roles held by women in government.

The Senator emphasized the impact of initiatives such as the Women Enterprise Fund, Uwezo Fund, and NGAAF in promoting financial inclusion. She also recognized the importance of laws protecting women from gender-based violence (GBV) and the establishment of support systems like gender desks in police stations and GBV recovery centers. However, she noted that challenges persist, including the incomplete implementation of the two-thirds gender rule, ongoing GBV cases, and economic disparities limiting women's access to resources and opportunities.

The Senator further outlined KEWOSA's commitment to advancing women's empowerment through targeted programs in education, health, leadership, gender equality, and digital innovation. She emphasized the need for adequate funding to support scholarships for girls, mentorship programs, access to quality healthcare, and protection against GBV.

The Senator urged the Senate to take decisive action by fully implementing the two-thirds gender rule, expanding financial opportunities for women, strengthening GBV response mechanisms, and amplifying women's voices in climate action and digital innovation. She concluded by emphasizing that true empowerment goes beyond representation and must translate into meaningful opportunities that drive transformation. Happy International Women's Day.

iii. Nominated Senator (Sen. Hamida Kibwana, MP) made a Statement concerning the recent win by Bien Baraza as the best East African artist at the Trace Music Awards 2025.

The Senator celebrated Bien's achievement as a personal triumph and a proud moment for Kenya, showcasing the country's thriving creative and performing arts sector. His success highlights the power of dedication, creativity, and resilience, reinforcing the role of music in shaping cultural identity, inspiring the youth, and contributing to the economy. Competing alongside top East African artists, Bien's recognition demonstrates the potential of Kenyan musicians on the global stage.

The Senator emphasized the importance of platforms like the Trace Music Awards in promoting local talent, noting that such platforms empower artists to turn their passions into meaningful careers, strengthening the creative industry.

To further support the arts, the Senator urged the Government to increase funding, establish mentorship programs, and provide grants for young artists. She also called for stronger partnerships with platforms like Trace, the incorporation of arts education in schools, and the creation of art hubs and music academies to nurture young talent.

b) Requests for Statements pursuant to Standing Order 53 (1)

- i) The Senator for Bungoma County (Sen. David Wafula Wakoli, MP) on behalf of the Senator for Kirinyaga County (Sen. James Murango, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Health regarding the suspension of healthcare services under the Social Health Authority (SHA) insurance cover by private hospitals.
- ii) The Senator for Bungoma County (Sen. David Wafula Wakoli, MP) on behalf of the Senator for Kirinyaga County (Sen. James Murango, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Labour and Social Welfare regarding the challenges faced by beneficiaries of *Inua Jamii* programme following migration to the E-Citizen Mpesa payment platform.
- iii) The Senator for Migori County (Sen. Eddy Oketch, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Finance and Budget regarding the lack of transparency in the financial operations of Migori County Government.
- iv) The Senator for Migori County (Sen. Eddy Oketch, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Finance and Budget regarding the settlement of pending bills by the County Executive of Migori County Government.
- v) The Senator for Kiambu County (Sen. Karungo Thang'wa, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Energy regarding electricity disconnections and state of operations at the Kenya Power and Lighting Company (KPLC).
- vi) The Senator for Nandi County (Sen. Samson Cherarkey, MP) on behalf of nominated Senator (Sen. Esther Okenyuri, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Labour and Social Welfare regarding the poor enforcement of anti-human trafficking laws.
- vii) Nominated Senator (Sen. Hamida Kibwana, MP) sought a Statement from the Standing Committee on Lands, Environment and Natural Resources regarding the recent waves of wildfires that have ravaged various forest reserves and National parks across the Country.
- viii) Request for Statement by the Senator for Uasin Gishu County (Sen. Jackson Mandago, MP) to the Standing Committee on Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries regarding the status of purchase of wheat from Kenyan farmers was <u>deferred</u>.

The Senate Majority Leader issued a Statement on the business of the Senate for the week commencing Tuesday, 11th March, 2025.

7. <u>MOTION - REPORT OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE,</u> <u>LIVESTOCK AND FISHERIES ON A PETITION TO THE SENATE</u> <u>REGARDING THE CATASTROPHIC MAIZE DISEASES THAT FARMERS</u> <u>IN BOMET COUNTY HAVE ENDURED FOR THE LAST TWELVE YEARS.</u>

Order read;

THAT, the Senate adopts the Report of the Standing Committee on Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries on a Petition to the Senate regarding the catastrophic maize diseases that farmers in Bomet County have endured for the last twelve years, laid on the Table of the Senate on Thursday, 5th December, 2024.

(The Chairperson, Standing Committee on Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries)

(Resumption of debate interrupted on Wednesday, 5th March, 2025 – Afternoon Sitting)

(Question to be put)

Order deferred;

8. <u>THE PUBLIC FUNDRAISING APPEALS BILL (SENATE BILLS NO. 36 OF</u> <u>2024)</u>

(The Senate Majority Leader)

(Second Reading)

(Resumption of debate interrupted on Thursday, 28th November, 2024) (Division)

Order deferred.

9. <u>THE ENVIRONMENT LAWS (AMENDMENT) BILL (SENATE BILLS NO. 23</u> OF 2024)

(Sen. Abdul Haji, MP)

(Second Reading)

(Resumption of debate interrupted on Thursday, 13th February, 2025) (Division)

Order deferred.

10. **THE COUNTY CIVIC EDUCATION BILL (SENATE BILLS NO. 4 OF 2024)** (Sen. Esther Okenyuri, MP)

(Second Reading)

(Resumption of debate interrupted on Thursday, 13th February, 2025) (Division)

Order deferred.

11. MOTION - REPORT OF THE MEDIATION COMMITTEE ON THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST BILL (NATIONAL ASSEMBLY BILLS NO. 12 OF 2023)

(Vice- Chairperson, Mediation Committee)

THAT, the Senate adopts the Report of the Mediation Committee on the Conflict-of-Interest Bill (National Assembly Bills No. 12 of 2023), laid on the table of the Senate on Thursday, 5th December, 2024 and further that pursuant to Article 113 (2) of the Constitution and Standing Order 167 (3) of the Senate, approves the mediated version of the Bill.

(Resumption of debate interrupted on Thursday, 27th February, 2025) (Division)

Order deferred.

12. MOTION - REPORT OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE, LIVESTOCK AND FISHERIES ON A PETITION TO THE SENATE REGARDING GRAFT INVESTIGATION BY THE ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION COMMISSION (EACC) ON THE WEST KANO IRRIGATION SCHEME

Order read;

Motion made and Question proposed;

THAT, the Senate adopts the Report of the Standing Committee on Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries on a Petition to the Senate regarding graft investigation by the Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission (EACC) on the West Kano irrigation scheme, laid on the Table of the Senate on Thursday, 5th December, 2024.

(The Chairperson, Standing Committee on Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries)

Debate arising;

And there being no more Senators wishing to contribute;

Mover replied;

(No. 016)

Pursuant to Standing Order 66 (3), the Mover requested the Temporary Speaker (Sen. Wakili Hillary Sigei, MP) to defer putting of the Question to a later date;

And the Temporary Speaker (Sen. Wakili Hillary Sigei, MP), acceding to the request, deferred the putting of the Question to Tuesday, 11th March, 2025.

13. MOTION - REPORT OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON LABOUR AND SOCIAL WELFARE ON AN INQUIRY INTO THE WELFARE OF WORKERS IN EXPORT PROCESSING ZONES (EPZS) IN MOMBASA AND KILIFI COUNTIES

Order read;

Motion made and Question proposed;

THAT, the Senate adopts the Report of the Standing Committee on Labour and Social Welfare on an inquiry into the plight of workers in the Export Processing Zones (EPZs) in Mombasa and Kilifi Counties, laid on the Table of the Senate on Tuesday, 1st October, 2024.

(The Chairperson, Standing Committee of Labour and Social Welfare)

Debate arising;

And the time being Thirty Minutes past Six O'clock, the Temporary Speaker (Sen. Wakili Hillary Sigei, MP) interrupted the proceedings and adjourned the Senate without Question put, pursuant to the Standing Orders.

14. **SENATE ROSE** – at thirty minutes past Six O'clock.

MEMORANDUM

The Speaker will take the Chair on Tuesday, March 11, 2025 at 2:30 pm

--*x*--